1	AAL	-
	AMBIENT ASSISTED LIVING	
-		

PAMAP

Deliverable: D5.2

Issue 1.0

PAMAP System Software Report and Documentation

		Name (company)	Date
Approved	Work Package 5 Leader	Ilias Lamprinos (ICOM)	31 August 2010
	Hierarchical responsible	Nicos Ioannidis (ICOM)	31 August 2010
Verified	WP5 Leader	Ilias Lamprinos (ICOM)	31 August 2010
Released	Coordinator	Didier Stricker (DFKI)	31 August 2010

Dissemination level: PU

PU (*Public*); *PP* (*Restricted to other programme participants*); *RE* (*restricted to a group specified by the consortium*); *CO* (*confidential only for members the consortium*) *Document Status: final*

AAL	REFERENCE:	PAMAP-WP5-D5.2
AMBIENT ASSISTED LIVING	ISSUE:	1.0
	Date:	31 August 2010

COVER AND CONTROL PAGE O	F THE DOCUMENT
Project EU reference:	AAL-2008-1-162
Project acronym:	РАМАР
Project Title:	Physical Activity Monitoring for Ageing People
Work package	WP5: Information Management and User Interface
Task	T5.1,2,3
Deliverable number:	D5.2
Document title:	PAMAP System Software Report and Documentation
Document type (PU, INT, RE)	PU
Version:	1.0
Date:	31/08/2010
Author(s):	Lamprinos Ilias (ICOM)
Contributors list:	Michalis Chouchoulis, Kostas Tsakalos (ICOM)
	Daniel Steffen, Gabriele Bleser & Gustaf Hendeby (DFKI)



Table of Contents

Executive Summary	5
1. Web-based Electronic Health Record	6
1.1. Introduction	6
1.2. Supported functionality of the first prototype	6
1.2.1. Entering the web-based EHR	
1.2.2. Searching for a Patient in the EHR database	6
1.2.3. Patient Personal Details	7
1.2.4. Patient's Health Profile: Family History	7
1.2.5. Patient's Health Profile: Health Related Habits of Living	8
1.2.6. Patient's Health Profile: Allergies	8
1.2.7. Patient's Health Profile: Vaccinations	8
1.2.8. Patient's EHR Overview	9
1.2.9. Patient's Tests	
1.3. Personal Rehabilitation Plans	
1.3.1. Care Plan Definition	
2. PAMAP System Administration	16
3. i-TV Based Personal Health Record application	
3.1. Introduction	
3.2. Supported functionality of the first prototype	
4. Measurements Visualization application	23
4.1. Introduction	23
4.2. Supported functionality of the first prototype	23
5. First Integrated Prototype	
Appendix:	

Table of Figures

Figure 1: The PAMAP system entry page	6
Figure 2: Searching for a patient in the EHR database	
Figure 3: Editing - Reviewing patient personal details	
Figure 4: Patient's Family Health History	
Figure 5: Health Related Habits of Living	
Figure 6: Patient's allergies	
Figure 7: Patient's vaccinations	
Figure 8: Patient EHR Overview: Diagnoses	9
Figure 9: Patient's EHR Overview: Medications	9
Figure 10: Patient's EHR Overview: Surgeries	
Figure 11: Patient's Overview: Timeline presentation	
Figure 12: Clinical Laboratory and other Tests	
Figure 13: Test's with pending results page	
Figure 14: Test Results	
Figure 15: Attachments in the Test Results	
Figure 16: Care Plan Definition	
Figure 17: Care Plan Configuration	
Figure 18: Configuration of Educational Sessions related to a Care Plan	
Figure 19: Configuration of Visits related to a Care Plan	14
Figure 20: Configuration of Questionnaires to be answered in the context of a Care Plan	
Figure 21: Log in to the PAMAP Administration Tool	
Figure 22: PAMAP Administration Tool Environment	
Figure 23: Equipment management tab	17
Figure 24: Log in to the i-TV PHR application	
Figure 25: i-TV based PHR user menu	19
Figure 26: Daily issues according to the patient's Care Plan	
Figure 27: Daily issues according to the patient's Care Plan	
Figure 28: Personal Messages List	20
Figure 29: Rehabilitation plan as presented in the i-TV PHR interface	20
Figure 30: Personal Reminders List	21
Figure 31: PHR Overview as presented in the i-TV (Diagnoses tab)	21
Figure 32: PHR Overview as presented in the i-TV (Medication tab)	
Figure 33: PHR Overview as presented in the i-TV (Surgeries tab)	22
Figure 34: Test Results as presented in the i-TV based PHR	
Figure 35: Questionnaires as presented in the i-TV interface	22
Figure 36 Example of the start screen of the Measurement Visualization Application for G	Jerman
(left) and English (right) users. Depending on the origin of the user the appropriate	
language is selected	
Figure 37: The training mode visualizes the movement of the user. According to the move	
of the user (real-time or play back) an abstract puppet moves. Furthermore, the interface	
shows the number of repetitions that have been executed by the user	24
Figure 38: The statistics page displays the 1-minute (top), daily (middle), and weekly (bot	
exercise intensity of the user's activity	
Figure 39: The map (Landkarte) page presents the combination of GPS and additional sen	isor
data (e.g. heart rate) of the user	
Figure 40: An interface implemented for the development team. The user is able to switch	
between online, offline and web service as source for the measurement stream	

PAMAP project aims at developing a system that enables the accurate monitoring of the physical activities of aging people. This deliverable provides the reader with an overview of the first software prototypes of the web based Electronic Health Record (Chapter 1), the web based Electronic Health Record Administration Tool (Chapter 2), the interactive TV based Personal Health Record (Chapter 3) and the Measurements Visualization Application (Chapter 4). It also describes the mechanisms used for the integration of the first PAMAP system prototype, namely the web services for the communication of the Measurements Advanced Processing Application and the Measurements Visualization Application. It should be noted that the Measurements Advanced Processing Application. It should be noted that the Measurements Advanced Processing Application.

1.1. Introduction

The development environment, consist basically of the Application Server, which is Glassfish and the Database server, which is an Oracle server. The Application Server is running under JVM version 5 or higher, supporting java server pages and web or enterprise applications based on J2EE. The development tools which are used include the Integrated Development Environment NetBeans and Database Monitor applications, such as Oracle Developer and TOAD for Oracle.

1.2. Supported functionality of the first prototype

The PAMAP EHR application enables clinicians and paramedical personnel to edit/review health related information of the monitored subjects. More specifically, the following information fields will be available for editing:

- *General Health Profile of the Monitored Subject;* family health history, habits & social history (e.g. smoking, alcohol consumption), allergies, vaccinations
- Visits; organ system findings, manual entry of symptoms & measurements
- *Medical Tests;* test orders, manual entry of test results, test results overview and graphic representation
- *Diagnosis Management;* insert new diagnoses, using the ICD-10 nomenclature, search for past diagnoses
- Treatment Management; surgeries, medication

In addition to the above, an Overview tab provides the user with a quick and printable outline of selected information (e.g. diagnoses, medications, surgeries, specific measurements, related to the subject).

1.2.1. Entering the web-based EHR

Figure 1 depicts the entry point of the PAMAP system. The user has the ability to select the appropriate application from a list including the Electronic Health Record, the Personal Health Record, the Patient Relationship Management and the Administrative Tool.



Figure 1: The PAMAP system entry page

1.2.2. Searching for a Patient in the EHR database

Figure 2 presents the screen where a user can select or search for a patient available in the EHR database in order to retrieve his/her EHR related information and use the rest of the functionality supported by the EHR application.

pam AP Elect	ronic Health Record			F	New Patient	My Profile	Logout	
	Patient Fir Patient La Social Sec Search	of the following patient informa st Name:						Login Informat Login User Name Panagiotis Nikolaou
	Patient Informa Patient Name		Father Name	Date_of_birth	UserAcces	5		
	patient Ασθενής	12345678	father	01-06-2010	Edit			

Figure 2: Searching for a patient in the EHR database

1.2.3. Patient Personal Details

Figure 3 presents the screen where the user can edit and review the patient's personal details.

pam AP	ectronic Health R	ecord		Q Fin	d Patient 🛛 🙀 N	ew Patient 🥤	My Profile	Logout
2 Personal Details	Overview	CHealth Profile 🕴 Visits	s / Tests & Diagnos	is 🍤 Treatment 🤤	Care Plan S	ummary		
Personal Details								
First Name*:	Ασθενής	Last Name*:	patient	1				Login Informat
Social Security No*:	12345678							Login User Name Panagiotis Nikolaou
Father's Name*:	father	Date_of_birth*:	01-06-2010 dd-MM-yyyy					Patient
Address:	assasa							
Mobile#:		Home#:]				
Email:		Picture:	Αναζήτη	ση				
Next Of Kin Details First Name:		Last Name:		1				
Telephone No. #1:	1231233	Telephone No. #	¥2:]			F	Patient Name: patient Ασθενής Social Security N 12345678
		Submit						

Figure 3: Editing - Reviewing patient personal details

1.2.4. Patient's Health Profile: Family History

Figure 4 presents the screen where the user can edit and review the patient's family health history. The user is able to insert a new item including info about any of the patient's family members. The ability of editing is allowed only to users having the clinician role.

pam AP Electr	ronic Health R	ecord					9	Find Patient	New Patient	My Profile	Logout
🆄 Personal Details 🔡	Overview	Hea	lth Profile	🕴 🛉 Visits	Tests	CDiagnosis	Treatment	Care Plan	Summary		
Family History Habi	ts, Social His	tory A	llergies	Vaccination	s Body I	Mass Index					
Insert new entry											Login Informat
Family Member:		mal Gran	dmother 💌]							Login User Name Panagiotis Nikolaor
 or select from lis 	t:										Patient
Abdominal and pe	lvic pain					\sim					
Diagnosis Age:	Su	ıbmit	Death	Age							
Past History											
Relationship Typ Maternal Grandmo		Age 30	Death Age	Diagno							Patient Name patient Ασθενής Social Security N 12345678

Figure 4: Patient's Family Health History

1.2.5. Patient's Health Profile: Health Related Habits of Living

Figure 5 presents the screen where the user can edit and review the health related habits of living. The ability of editing is allowed only to users having the clinician role.

par	n AP	Electro	onic Healtl	Recor	rd 🏞								9	Find Patient	New	v Patient	My Profil	e እ Logo	out
and Per	rsonal Detail	s 🛱	Overvie	v 🛴	Health Pro	file	🕴 Visits	<u>/</u> '1	Cests	CDiagno	osis	Trea	atment	Care Plan	1 Sun	nmary			
Famil	y History H	labit	s, Social I	listor	y Allergie	5 1	accination	ns B	ody N	Mass Index									
	Check all tha	at app	ly															Login In	
	Alcohol addi	ction:			Alcohol a	mou	nt (mg/day)										Login Use Panagiotis	
	Drug addicti	on:			Type:														
	Smoking:			~	Start date				02-08-	-2006								Patient	
					End date:				25-08-	-2010 M-yyyy									
					Packets p	er d	lay:	C	1	н-уууу									
					Pack Yea	s		ŀ	4										
	Passive smo	king:																	
	Exposure to environment conditions:				Details:													Patient No patient Act	θενής
	Living alone:	:			Weekly E	kcer	cise:		Less t	han once a w	eek	~						12345678	
	Other comm	ents																	
			[Submi	t														

Figure 5: Health Related Habits of Living

1.2.6. Patient's Health Profile: Allergies

Figure 6 presents the screen where the user can edit and review patient's allergies. The ability of editing is allowed only to users having the clinician role.

Personal Details	Overview 🕵	Health Profile	🕴 Visits	Tests	Diagnosis	Treatment	Care Plan	Summary	
mily History Ha	ibits, Social Histor	y Allergies	Vaccination	s Body M	Mass Index				
Enter new Alle	rav								Login Informa
G6PD defficier	Change	e							Login User Nam Panagiotis Nikolao
Allergy catego	Miscellaneou	us allergens 💌 '	Allergy:	Formalde	ehyde 💌				
Allergy status	active 💌]							Patient
Recorded All		omit	_						
Allergy	Category	Status	Change						
Formaldehyde	Miscellaneous allergens	active 💌							Patient Name patient Ασθενής
									Social Security

Figure 6: Patient's allergies

1.2.7. Patient's Health Profile: Vaccinations

Figure 7 presents the screen where the user can edit and review patient's vaccinations. The ability of editing is allowed only to users having the clinician role.

n AP Electronic	Health Record	4		MC			(C Find Pat	ient	New Patient	My Profile	Logout
rsonal Details 📸 Ove	erview MHe	alth	Profile 🔌	Visits	Tests	CDiagnosis	Treatme	nt ZCar	e Plan	Summary		
y History Habits, So	cial History	Alle	gies Vacc	inations	Body M	Iass Index						
Enter a new vaccinatio	'n											
Vaccine												Login Informati
Vaccine selection*:	BCG (Tuberculo Botulinum Antito CMV Immune G	inix				~						Login User Name Panagiotis Nikolaou
Vaccination Date*:												Patient
Vaccination Clinician:	dd-MM-vvvv											
	Submit											MAN
Vaccination History		_										
Vaccine 🔩	Vaccination Date	Ť4	Clinician ቱ									
BCG (Tuberculosis) Vaccine			ffff									Patient Name
	09-11-2009		you									Doe John
tis not real	06-11-2009		a clinitian	1								Social Security N
Botulinum other name	03-11-2009		kostas2	1								1245667
	03-11-2009		a doctor	1								
I Page: 1	of 4 Go		Ы									

Figure 7: Patient's vaccinations

1.2.8. Patient's EHR Overview

Patient's EHR overview includes information related to diagnoses, medication and surgeries, as presented in Figure 8, Figure 9 and Figure 10 respectively. Appropriate links may drive the user to editing an existing or inserting a new entry, in each of the corresponding pages. The ability of editing is allowed only to users having the clinician role.

Personal Detai	ils Overview	Health Pro	ofile 🕴 Visi	ts T	ests & Diagn	iosis 🍾 Treat	tment Care Pla	in Summary	
Patient Overview	TimeLine								
									Login Informa
Diagnosis	Medications	Surgeries							Login User Nam
Add New Diagnos	ie.								Panagiotis Nikola
Had New Diagnos		Diagnosis	Coding		Diagnosing				Patient
Diagnosis		date	method	Code	Clinician	Status			
Abnormal blood- without diagnosi	pressure reading,	03-08-2010				Active			

Personal Detai	ils Covervie	w Mealth	Profile 🍦 Vis	its / Tests 🔗	Diagnosis 🍾	Freatment Care Pl	an Summary	
tient Overview	TimeLine							
			7					Login Informa
Diagnosis	Medications	Surgeries						Login User Nam Panagiotis Nikolao
Add New Medicati	Start date	End date	Dosage	Dosage Times	Prescribing	1		Patient
8Y LY PD.INJ. 10 VIALS 250 I	03-08-2010	06-08-2010	1	morning	Panagiotis Nikolaou			
								Patient Name

Figure 9: Patient's EHR Overview: Medications

Personal De	tails 0	verview	Health Pr	rofile 🕴 Visits 🖉 Tests 🌈 Diagnosis 🍫 Tre	eatment Care Plan	n Summary	
ient Overvi	iew TimeL	ine					
-	111						Login Informa
Diagnos	is Medica	itions 5	Surgeries				Login User Nam
Add New Surg	jery						Panagiotis Nikolao
Surgery	Date	Surgeon	Comments	Diagnosis			Patient
Surgery skolikoiditis		Surgeon Nikolaou	Comments	Diagnosis Abnormal blood-pressure reading, without diagnosis			Patient

Figure 10: Patient's EHR Overview: Surgeries

Patient's Overview also includes a timeline including brief info (date, label) about vaccinations, medications, visits, surgeries, diagnosis concerning with the selected patient. The user is able to click on the brief info item and navigate to the appropriate web page including the detail info. Moreover, he/she is able to change the query criteria, in order to refresh the displayed info.

$\operatorname{pam}\operatorname{AP}$ Electronic Health Rec			<u>Find Patient</u>		My Profile 🕅 Logout
APersonal Details	Health Profile 🤌 Visits	Tests & Diagnosis	* Treatment / Care Plan	Summary	
Patient Overview TimeLine					
	Abnormal blood-pressure real	ading, without diagnosis			Login Informat
	 08 03 2010 08 03 2010 08 03 2010 				Login User Name Panagiotis Nikolaot
					Patient
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Info Most Recent In	5er fo 2012 2013			Patient Name patient Actions
Vaccinations V	- 2010-08-03	Update (YYYY:MM-DD)			Social Security N 12345678

Figure 11: Patient's Overview: Timeline presentation

1.2.9. Patient's Tests

Figure 12 shows the page where the user can order a clinical laboratory test or other tests related to the patient, e.g. a self-test or a rehabilitation exercise. After doing so, the Pending Test Results is updated accordingly (Figure 13), and, upon execution of the test and automatic or manual entry of the test results, the Test Results page is updated accordingly (Figure 14). The user is also given the ability to insert attachment files related to a specific test (e.g. documents, pictures, etc.), as presented in Figure 15.

pam A	P Electronic Health Record			Q	ind Patient	New Patient	My Profile	Logout
A Personal	Details Overview CHealth	Profile Visits / Tests	CDiagnosis	Treatment	Care Plan	Summary		
Test Orders	Pending Results Test Result D	etails Test Results Graphs						
Test Family:	Blood Tests	Date: dd-MM-yyyy						Login Informat
Order Test	Biochemical Tests Urine Tests Blood Donation Immunology Tests							Panagiotis Nikolaoı
Order	Cardiac Tests Nuclear Medicine Tests		t 4					Patient
	Pulmonary Tests Radiology Tests							
	Microbiology Tests Endocrinology and Diabetes Tests Tumor Factor Tests							
	Endoscopy Tests Pathology Tests							
	Other Functional Capacity Tests							
	Eos]						
	Baso							Patient Name patient Ασθενής
	Ht							Social Security N
	RBC							12345678
	MCV							
	MCH							
	MCHC							
	PLT							

Figure 12: Clinical Laboratory and other Tests

m A	P_{Elec}	tronic Healt	h Record						0	Find Patient	New Patient	My Profile	Logout
Personal De	tails	Overvie	w Theal	th Profile 🕴 🔪	isits	/Tests	Diag	nosis 🍾	Treatmen	t 📝 Care Plan	Summary		
st Orders I	Pending	g Results	Test Result	Details Test I	Result	ts Graphs							
				1									Login Informat
Observa	tion Rec		ttachments Osberv	ation Request	15-06-	2010 Home BPN	1 🔽						Login User Name Panagiotis Nikolaou
NOTE: Add T	he Atta	chments BE	FORE enterin	g the Data			Submit						Patient
Pending Te	st Resu	lts				DATE*			_				
TEST 1+	VALUE*	• •	UNITS 🛧	DESCRIPTION	Ť4	(dd-mm-yyyy hh:MM)	У †4	OBSERVE	R 🛧				
SYSTOLIC			mmHg			15-06-2010]			
DIASTOLIC			mmHg			15-06-2010							
PULSE			bpm			15-06-2010							
													Patient Name patient Ασθενής Social Security N 12345678

Figure 13: Test's with pending results page

ersonal	Details	Overvie	w The	alth Profile 🕴	Visi	ts / Tests	Diagnosis	Treatment	Care Plan	Summary	
t Orders	Pending	Results	Fest Resu	lt Details Te	st Res	ults Graphs					
				_							Login Informat
Obser	vation Req	uest At	achments	•							Login User Name Panagiotis Nikolao
TFam Obser	vation Req		lood Tests 12-07-2010								Patient
NAME ቱ	VALUE 14	UNITS 14	DATE ቱ	DESCRIPTION	† ↓	OBSERVER	î‡↓				
	1	%									
Lym											
Lym Neu	1	%									
	1 4	%									
Neu											Patient Name

Figure 14: Test Results

	SFind Patient 🏹 New Patient 🎢 My Profile 🚷 Logout
APersonal Details Overview CHealth Profile Visits / Tests & Diagno	osis Greatment Care Plan Summary
Test Orders Pending Results Test Result Details Test Results Graphs	
Observation Request Attachments Title: Clinicia Description Date: Attach file: Avoimm. Attach file: Attach TITLE URL DESCRIPTION CLINICIAN DATE No items found. CLINICIAN DATE	Φόρτωση αρχείου ? Look in: ist Image: Second seco
	My Network Files of type: Όλα τα αρχεία Cancel

Figure 15: Attachments in the Test Results

1.3. Personal Rehabilitation Plans

We discriminate between the *Overall Rehabilitation Plan*, i.e. the list of activities that are prescribed by the Medical Doctor/Attending Nurse during the set up of the rehabilitation plan of a patient; and, the *Daily Rehabilitation Plan*, i.e. the list of activities that the patient should carry out each day, as derived from the Rehabilitation Plan.

Overall Rehabilitation Plan is a single xml file, containing information on what the user has to do during the rehabilitation period. The application software is responsible for parsing this file and appropriately generating the information that is required when the viewer switches to the Overall Rehabilitation Plan screen.

1.3.1. Care Plan Definition

Figure 16 shows the page where the user can define a new care plan for the selected patient.

Co Contai De	etails Overvie	w Health Profile	🤌 Visits 🖉	Tests & Diagnosi	s 🎦 Treatment	Care Plan	Summary	
Management	Configuration	Questionnaires						
								Login Informa
	Description	Alergy CarePlan		Add New Care PI	an			Login User Nam Panagiotis Nikolao logged in
								Patient
	Delete Selected	Set Selected						
	Care Plan List			_				
	Select	DESCRIPTION						
		Alergy CarePla	n					Patient Name patient Ασθενής Social Security 12345678
								Care Plan

Figure 16: Care Plan Definition

Following the care plan definition step the user is provided with the functionality to configure this care plan by selecting measurements, education material and questionnaires for it (Figure 17). The name of the selected Care Plan appears down and right on the screen. In order to insert a new measurement, the user has to select the appropriate measurement category from a list of predefined categories. Next action is to define the time period in between the patient has to get the measurements. The periodicity is a parameter which defines the amount of measurements during the defined time unit. The time unit has to be selected from the user from a list of predefined units like 'day', month' etc. If the user owns the role of clinician he has the ability to insert the complete measurement info into the system. After the insertion, the system offers a useful API as a set of services, in order to get in XML format all the measurements which are necessary to complete from the patient, during a given time period.

Dam AP Elec	tronic l	Health Re	cord				8	Find Patient	New Patient	My Profile	Logout
🏠 Personal Details	Ove	erview	Health Profile	🕴 Visits 🏒	Tests	CDiagnosis	Treatment	Care Plan	Summary		
Management Confi	gurati	on Que	stionnaires								
											Login Informat
Measurements		cational	Questionnaires	Visits		_					Login User Name Panagiotis Nikolaon logged in
	Descrip Categor		stair steps								Patient
	- Date fro		Heart Rate Home BPM	ps before exhau							
	Date to Periodic	ity	Oximetry Number of stair step Time to cover a cali			Add New Measu	rement				
,	Notes										
	1 measur	ement per d	ay								Patient Name Social Security N
[Delete S	elected									Care Plan
	Table					DATE					Selected Care Pla
	Select	Measurer	nent Type		NAME		ATE TO				Alergy CarePlan
		Numbe	r of stair steps befor	e exhaustion 💌	stair steps		ug 31, 010				

Figure 17: Care Plan Configuration

For the configuration of the Educational Material to be assigned in a specific Care Plan a separate tab is available (Figure 18). The name of the selected Care Plan appears down and right on the screen. In order to insert a new session, the user has to select the appropriate session category from a list of predefined categories. Next action is to define the time period in between the patient has to join the session. The periodicity is a parameter which defines the amount of session to join, during the defined day of week. If the user owns the role of clinician, he has the ability to insert the complete session info into the system. After the insertion, the system offers a useful API as a set of services, in order to get in XML format all the sessions which the patient has to join to, during a given time period.

pam AP Elec	ctronic	Health Record						9	Find Patient	New Patier	nt 🎢 My Profile	Logout
A Personal Details	Ov	erview CHealth	Profile 🄌 Visits	Tes	sts & Dia	gnosis	• T	reatment	t 🕜 Care Pla	n Summary	7	
Management Confi	gurati	on Questionnaire	25									
	Edi Descrip Categor Date fro Date to Periodic Notes	Y How to g 08/03/201 08/06/201	et measurememnt 💌			w Educa	ational					Login Informa Login User Nam Panagiotis Nikolao logged in Patient
	get info Delete S Table	elected		2								Patient Name Social Security I Care Plan
	Select	Educational Type			JAME	DATE	DATE TO	DAYS				Selected Care Pl Alergy CarePlan
		http://www.site/vi	d/video1	v 1	Aeasurement guide		Aug 6, 2010	Mon,Tus,				

Figure 18: Configuration of Educational Sessions related to a Care Plan

For the configuration of patient visits to his/her clinician related to a specific Care Plan another tab should be used, as presented in Figure 19. The name of the selected Care Plan appears down and right on the screen. Next action is to define the date, when the patient has to do the visit to the clinician. If the user owns the role of clinician he has the ability to insert the complete visit info into the system. After the insertion, the system offers a useful API as a set of services, in order to get in XML format all the visits which the patient has to do, during a given time period

pam AP	ectronic Healt	h Record				9	Find Patient	New Patient	My Profile	Logout
A Personal Details	Overvie	w Mealth Pr	ofile 🍦 Visits	Tests &D	iagnosis	Treatment	/Care Plar	n Summary		
Management Cont	iguration	Questionnaires								
				_						Login Informa
Measurements			naires Visits							Login User Nan Panagiotis Nikolao logged in
	Description Date	08/18/2010 mm/dd/yy	/y		Add New Visit					Patient
	Notes									
	a visit to test res	uts								Patient Name Social Security
	Delete Selecte	d								Care Plan
	Table									
		AME Purp	lose	DATE FROM	DATE T)				Selected Care Pl Alergy CarePlan
	C 0	ntrol visit a vis	it to test results	Aug 18, 2010						- nor by our or full

Figure 19: Configuration of Visits related to a Care Plan

Finally, the user uses the tab presented in Figure 20 to select the questionnaires that should be answered by the patient in the context of a Care Plan. The name of the selected Care Plan appears down and right on the screen. In order to insert a new session, the user has to select the appropriate questionnaire category from a list of predefined categories. Next action is to define the time period when the patient has to answer the questionnaire. The periodicity is a parameter which defines the amount of sessions to join during the defined day of week. If the user owns the role of clinician he has the ability to insert the complete questionnaire info into the system. After the insertion, the system offers a useful API as a set of services, in order to get in XML format all the questionnaires which the patient has to answer, during a given time period.

am AP Electr	ronic H	ealth Record 🐔						(Q Find Pati	ent	New Patient	My Profile	Logout
🏠 Personal Details 🔡	Over	view Mealth	Profile 🄌 Visi	ts 🧷	Tests	CDiag	gnosis	Treatme	ent Care	Plan	Summary		
Management Config	uratio	n Questionnaire	s										
	1					٦							Login Informa
Measurements	Educ	ational Sessions	Questionnaire	s V	isits								Login User Nam Panagiotis Nikolao logged in
	escripti ategory		e Walk Test-Usern	ame 🔽									Patient
Da	ate fron ate to eriodici	08/26/201				Add New	v Question	naire					
No	otes		We	~									
W	alk test												Patient Name Social Security
	elete Se	lected						_					Care Plan
	Table Select E	ducational Type	_	NAME	DATE FROM	DATE TO	DAYS						Selected Care Pl Alergy CarePlan
E		Six Minute Walk Te	st-Username 💌	walk test	Aug 3, 2010	Aug 26, 2010	Mon,Tus	,Wed,					

Figure 20: Configuration of Questionnaires to be answered in the context of a Care Plan

A PAMAP Administrator Web Interface enables the PAMAP System administrator to have access to a set of administrative tools. A log in page (Figure 21) is available for the user to authenticate himself.

pamAP User Access Management			
	User Login		
	username: password:		
		Login	

Figure 21: Log in to the PAMAP Administration Tool

If the authentication is successful, the necessary user interface functionalities are activated and access to the PAMAP system database is granted (Figure 22). The functionality includes edit of the profile of the PAMAP system users, configuration of their access right and credentials, etc.

pamAP User Access Management		Logout
	Main Actions	Login Inform Login User Nar Panagiotis Nikola logged in
	Select Action My Profile User List Account Info Transparency User Roles User Permissions	
	Warehouse Equipment	

Figure 22: PAMAP Administration Tool Environment

Of special interest is the tab that enables the administrator to manage PAMAP equipment (Figure 23), i.e. it is a device manager that associates medical devices, STBs and other terminal equipment to physical or logical entities (patients/healthcare professionals or network nodes, respectively).

pamAP User Access Management						Cogout Main Actions
	Serial Nu Patient N Equipme Type Delete Se	umber 02345678 tame Ασθενής nt Weight S	patient 💌 cale 💌	Add New E	quipment	Login Inform Login User Nar Panagiotis Nikola logged in
	Table Select	SERIALNUMBER	EQUIPMENT NAME	ASSIGNEE NAME	TEST ID	
		02345678	Weight Scale	Aσθενής patient	123110	-

Figure 23: Equipment management tab

3.1. Introduction

The development environment consists basically of the Application Server, which is GlashFish and the Database server, which is an Oracle server. The Application Server is running under JVM version 5 or higher, supporting java server pages and java web servlets. The development tools, include the Integrated Development Environment NetBeans and Database Monitor applications, such as Oracle Developer and TOAD for Oracle. A Linux open source DHCP server is used in order to supply IP address to the STBs.

3.2. Supported functionality of the first prototype

The *Personal Health Record* application provides an i-TV interface to the intLIFE EHR. The sitemap of the PHR site presented in the TV monitor of the patient is the following

- Sitemap:
- Login
 - o Personal Health Record
 - Overview
 - Laboratory Test Results Details
 - Laboratory Test Results Graphs
 - o Day Issues
 - Measurements
 - Questionnaires
 - Personal Messages
 - User Name
 - Message
 - o Personal Reminders
 - User Name
 - Task
 - o Educational Material
 - Educational Sessions
 - o Videoconference
 - Rehabilitation Plan :
 - Measurements
 - Educational Sessions
 - Questionnaires
 - Hospital Visits
 - Laboratory Tests

In the following set of figures indicative pages of the i-TV based PHR site are presented.







Figure 25: i-TV based PHR user menu



Figure 26: Daily issues according to the patient's Care Plan



Figure 27: Daily issues according to the patient's Care Plan



Figure 28: Personal Messages List



Figure 29: Rehabilitation plan as presented in the i-TV PHR interface



Figure 30: Personal Reminders List

Abnormal blood-pressure reading, without 01-11-2009 Ice Ice Active othertest 13-10-2009 Ice Ice Ongoing testtest 05-10-2009 Ice Ice Active A 12-07-2009 Ice Ice Ice Ice A 12-07-2009 Ice Ice Ice Ice Persistent delusional disorders 12-07-2009 Ice Ice Panagiotis Ongoing Persistent delusional disorders 12-07-2008 ICD-10 F22 Panagiotis Ongoing test finee text diagnosis 12-07-2008 ICD-10 F2 Panagiotis Active sdsa 08-07-2008 ICD-10 WE0 JkInk Ongoing Inhalation and ingestion of other objects 08-07-2008 ICD-10 WE0 JkInk Ongoing ghighji 29-06-2008 ICD-10 F07 Panagiotis Active personality and behavioral disorders due to 29-06-2008 ICD-10 F07 Panagiotis Active	NAME	DATE	METHOD	CODE	CLINICIAN	STATUS
Vestbest Q5-10-2009 Image: Constraint of the set of the	Abnormal blood-pressure reading, without	04-11-2009				Active
A 12-07-2009 test Inactive A 12-07-2009 nne Ongoing e 05-04-2009 ICD 10 F22 Panaglobis Ongoing Persistenit delusional disorders 12-07-2008 ICD 10 F22 Panaglobis Active sdsa 08-07-2008 ICD 10 F2 Panaglobis Active ghighly 09-07-2008 ICD 10 W80 Jkhk Ongoing personality and behavioral disorders due to brain diseases, damage and dysfunction 09-06-2008 ICD 10 F07 Panaglobis Active	othertest	13-10-2009				Ongoing
Persistemit delusional disordiers 15-04-2009 me Ongoing Persistemit delusional disordiers 12-07-2008 ICD10 F22 Penaglotis Ongoing test friee text diagnosis 12-07-2008 ICD10 F22 Penaglotis Active sdsa 08-07-2008 ICD10 W80 Jkhk Ongoing Inhalation and ingestion of other objects 09-07-2008 ICD10 W80 Jkhk Ongoing phraghtj 09-06-2008 ICD10 W80 Jkhk Ongoing phraghty 09-06-2008 ICD10 W80 Jkhk Ongoing phraghty 09-06-2008 ICD10 W80 Jkhk Ongoing phraghty 09-06-2008 ICD10 P07 Penaglotis Active	testtest	05-10-2009				Active
Persistemit dalusional disordiars 18-07-2008 ICD10 F22 Panaglotis Ongoing test free text diagnosis 12-07-2008 ICD10 F22 Panaglotis Active sdsa 08-07-2008 ICD10 W80 jkhk Ongoing Inhalation and ingestion of other objects 08-07-2008 ICD10 W80 jkhk Ongoing ghighij 09-06-2008 ICD10 W80 jkhk Ongoing personality and behavioral disorders due to brain disease, damage and dysfunction 29-06-2008 ICD10 F07 Panaglotis Active	A (1997)	12-07-2009			test:	Inactive
test free text diagnosis 12-07-2008 Panaglotis Active sdsa 08-07-2008 FGH/GFH Ongoing Inhalation and ingestion of other objects 08-07-2008 ICD10 W80 jkhk Ongoing ghighji 29-06-2008 ICD10 W80 jkhk Ongoing personality and behavioral disorders due to brain disease, damage and dysfunction 29-06-2008 ICD10 F07 Panaglotis Active	ð	05-04-2009			mæ	Qngaing
sdsa Q8-07-2008 Image: FGHGRH Ongoing: Inhalation and ingestion of other objects Q8-07-2008 ICD10 W80 jkhk Ongoing: ghighj 29-06-2008 ICD10 W80 jkhk Ongoing: personality and behavioral disorders due to brain disease, damage and dysfunction 29-06-2008 ICD10 F07 Renagibits Active	Persistent: delusional disorders	18-07-2008	ICD10	F22	Penagjotis	Ongoing
Inhalation and ingestion of other objects 08-07-2008 ICD10 W80 jkhk Ongoing ghighji 29-06-2008 E Panaglotis Active Personality and behavioral disorders due to brain disease, damage and dysfunction 29-06-2008 ICD10 F07 Renaglotis Active	test free text diagnosis	12-07-2008			Panagiotis	Active
ghighi 29-06-2008 Panagiotis Active Personality and behavioral disorders due to brain disease, damage and dysfunction 29-06-2008 ICD10 P07 Panagiotis Active	adisa	08-07-2008			FGHGFH	Ongoing
Personality and behavioral disorders due to 29-06-2008 ICD10 P07 Panagiotis Active brain disease, damage and dysfunction	Inhalation and ingestion of other objects	08-07-2008	ICD10	WIGD	jkhk	Ongoing
	ghighi	29-06-2008			Panagiotis	Active
The has an	Personality and behavioral disorders due to brain disease, damage and dysfunction	29-06-2008	ICD10	F07	Penagjotis Nikolaou	Active
gnjgnj zvyuo-zulus Penagiotis Active	ahiahi	29-06-2008			Penagjotis	Active
test diagnosis 29-06-2008 Panagiotis Ongoing	test diagnosis	29-06-2008			Penagiotis	Ongoing
Other mood (affective) disorders 20-07-2005 ICD10 F38 Panagiotis Inactive	Other moodi (afflective) disorders	20-07-2005	ICD10	F38	Penagiotis	Inactive

Figure 31: PHR Overview as presented in the i-TV (Diagnoses tab)

VAME START END DOSAGE TIMES CLINICIA Ibnormal blood-pressure reading, thertest Image: Start Image: Start <t< th=""><th>****</th></t<>	****
thertest esterst test test test test test	
k test test me	
ersistemt delusional disorders Panagiotis	
est free text diagnosis Panagiotis Panagiotis	
disa; RGHGRHi	
nhalation and ingestion of other jikhk bjects causing obstruction of	
highij Panagiotis	
ersonality and behavioral Panagiotis isonders due to brain disease, Nikolaou	
highij Penagiotis	
est diagnosis Panagiotiis	
	**

Figure 32: PHR Overview as presented in the i-TV (Medication tab)

Diagnosis		the second s	Surge	
SURGERY	DATE	SURGEON	COMMENTS	DIAGNOSIS
didi gifindifin				test diagnosis
andan				test diagnosis
didididi				
test				
konstantinostest	23-10-2009	surgeonkostas	testikostas	test fiee text
test surgery	22-10-2009	kostas	test comments	
rostastest	14-10-2009	surgeontest	test	
kostastest	12-10-2009	surgeonkostas	test	
mytest	05-10-2009	surgeonkostas	kostas	
organi triansplant:	27-07-2009	Konstas	Success	
orgam transplant:	20-07-2009	Konstas		
iabiaitiamiy	13-07-2009	Dr., Nick		
I Previous				Next H
		~		
	1	1.62	CAN .	

Figure 33: PHR Overview as presented in the i-TV (Surgeries tab)



Figure 34: Test Results as presented in the i-TV based PHR

DI JESTIONNAIDE FOI	R : 10/08/2010 - Part 2
Accesso i avoi si se esti cen e con	c control acono i ci ca
Distance	0
Limiting factor t	to the test
Check any that ap	sply
SOB	
Low SpO2	
Leg Faligue	
Other	
11 Previous	Press 😽 to transmit the questionnaire

Figure 35: Questionnaires as presented in the i-TV interface

4.1. Introduction

The Measurements Visualization Application is a Java application. Independency, architectural neutrality and portability are besides others the main reasons why this language has been chosen. Furthermore, the visualization uses the Java3D rendering framework.

Supporting different kinds of integrated development environments like Eclipse or NetBeans, the framework of the Measurements Visualization Application was designed as a Java Web Start application. The Web Start features include the ability to automatically download and install a Java Runtime Environment in the case where the user does not have Java installed, and for programmers to specify which JRE version a given program needs in order to execute. Thus, allowing an easy and automatic installation of the Measurement Visualization Application. No expert or any technical skills are necessary. Any user can use the application by simply installing a JNLP client (most commonly Java Web Start). The installation can occur automatically such that the end user sees the client launcher downloading and installing the Java application when first executed. Furthermore, the user does not have to remain connected to the Internet to execute the download programs, because they execute from a locally-maintained cache. Updates of the software download from the Web become available when the user has a connection to the Internet, thus easing the burden of deployment.

In order to provide an easy development process for all partners of PAMAP the Measurement Visualization Application utilizes Apache Maven. Maven describes the Measurement Visualization software project being built, its dependencies on other external modules and components, and the build order.

4.2. Supported functionality of the first prototype

The Measurements Visualization Application provides the functionality to visualize the measurements generated by the Measurements Advanced Processing application and the Measurements Preprocessing application. The visualization might be graphs showing the heart rate or a virtual avatar animated with the body poses of the patient during the rehabilitation exercises. The Measurements Visualization application receives the data to be visualized either directly from the MAPA or from the PAMAP server, whereat the data to be visualized might be either real-time (i.e. currently streamed from the MAPA) or offline (i.e., a database record).

For the development of the Measurement Visualization Application a user-centered design process has been chosen. As described in the scenarios different user groups (e.g. patient, physician, etc.) with different skills and experience levels will use the measurement visualization interface.

The first Measurement Visualization Application prototype focuses on the visualization and interaction regarding elderly people. Here, different viewpoints have to be considered: Visibility, Accessibility, Legibility, and Language.

Figure 36 shows an example of the Measurement Visualization interface: the start screen of the application. The representation is easy and simple. Currently, the user is able to select among four modes. These modes can be expanded as needed. For the ease of interaction for elderly the size of the buttons as well as the font size is comparably large. The developer mode in the lower right corner is used for the test and evaluation process and will be explained later. All available modes could be used either by the patient while exercising or by the physician for analyzing the collected data.

Moreover, depending on the origin of the user the application has to support different languages. As shown in Figure 36 the Measurement Visualization Application supports different languages; among others: French, English, and German. The application could be easily extended to support further

languages. In case some of the chosen terms/definitions are not suitable a simple exchange is possible. Finally, for colour-blind users one can change the colour scheme of the user interface.



Figure 36 Example of the start screen of the Measurement Visualization Application for German (left) and English (right) users. Depending on the origin of the user the appropriate language is selected

Pressing the "Training" button the user enters the "Training" mode shown in Figure 37. This mode is used to display the user's movement; the most important mode for the patient. While the user is performing his exercises an abstract puppet moves according to the user's movement in real-time. Depending on the exercise additional information is displayed. Figure 37 shows an example exercise. Here, the user did one out of five repetitions. In addition, the user interface allows displaying warnings that a movement is not executed correctly or information on how to do it correctly. Using the training plan from the EHR the patient / user is guided through the whole exercise step by step. This also includes breaks to protect against over-exertion.



Figure 37: The training mode visualizes the movement of the user. According to the movement of the user (real-time or play back) an abstract puppet moves. Furthermore, the interface shows the number of repetitions that have been executed by the user.

The "Statistics" mode shown in Figure 38 is able to display the exercise intensity for different time intervals. In the upper chart the level computed for one minute is displayed. The following chart summarizes the level of a day. The bottom chart displays the level for one week. Using this mode one is able to examine the activity of the user for one minute up to one week.



Figure 38: The statistics page displays the 1-minute (top), daily (middle), and weekly (bottom) exercise intensity of the user's activity

In order to cover leisure activities like Nordic walking, etc. the additional mode "Map" has been developed (Figure 39). For displaying maps an interface has been implemented to utilize the web service of OpenStreetMap. The map mode combines GPS related data and additional sensor data. For example the user's heart rate can be displayed. Thus, the user as well as the physician is able to examine places at which activity was too tiring. Next time the user can take care and protect himself from over-exertion.



Figure 39: The map (Landkarte) page presents the combination of GPS and additional sensor data (e.g. heart rate) of the user.

For development, test and evaluation an additional interface has been implemented (Figure 40). Currently, the interface allows switching between different sources for the measurement stream. The different possibilities represent the various scenarios in which the measurement visualization application will be used. Firstly, the application developer is able to select the "online" mode for the real-time visualization of the users' movement. Additionally, this mode allows recording the real-time stream and saving it in a file. This file can be used in the "offline" mode for play back of the recorded motion data. The "webservice" section allows a connection to the EHR to get the recorded exercise. The last two options cover the scenario of analyzing the recorded exercise data to improve the rehabilitation.

Settings	—
MTBF Settings none online Port: 50111 enable recording	start stop
MTBF file:	
Speed:	
URI:Session ID:	

Figure 40: An interface implemented for the development team. The user is able to switch between online, offline and web service as source for the measurement stream

PC client - PAMAP Server communication link; the uplink from the PC client to the PAMAP is used to push the (pre)processed information to the PAMAP EHR database of the subject. The downlink is used to receive subject-related settings that are required for data (pre)processing, in the Control Unit, or advanced processing in the MAPA (e.g. min/max allowed heart rate, weight/age of the patient, etc.). Client-server communication is performed using **Web Services**. The web service that supports the client-server communication is the ICOM_EHR_Service (see Appendix). The interface that is used to resolve the above web service from the pc client (c++ client) is specified in the icomapi.h file (see Appendix).

The following documents provide additional information as well as technical details:

- Specification of the web service that supports the client-server communication (ICOM_EHR_Service Web Service WSDL file)
- Specification of the Motion Tracker Binary Format (MTBF.doc)
- Specification of API for communication with PAMAP server (icomapi.h)